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Request for Proposals for Location of an 
Organics Processing Facility on City of Santa Rosa Property 

Addendum 1 
 

Change in Due Date for Submission of Proposals. Notice is hereby given that the due date for submission of 

Proposals in response to the RFP is being extended to August 18, 2017 by 5:00 p.m. 

The following questions were submitted in response to the original RFP document issued on July 18, 2017. The 

City’s response to each of these questions is provided below. 

1. What is the energy usage for the WWTP?  
Plant load averages about 4,375 kWh (105,000 kWh/day). We purchase about 2,775 kWh (66,600 kWh/day) 

from Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E). The amount we purchase from PG&E fluctuates as a result of storm 

flows. Daily load from PG&E can exceed 125,000 kWh. 

2. What has been the average change in price that the WWTP has paid for electricity in the past 5 

years on an annualized basis? What is the spread from on peak to off peak times in terms of 

pricing and what is the periods of the day for on-peak and off-peak? 
The City has experienced an increase in electricity costs of approximately 10% over the last 5-years (since 

2012). We are on the E20T rate schedule.   

Our demand rates by component for generation are as follows: 

• Maximum peak demand summer: $15.89/kW 

• Maximum part-peak demand summer: $3.79/kW 

• There is no demand spread during winter months 

Our usage rates are as follows:  

• Peak summer: $0.10/kWh 

• Part-peak summer: $0.089/kWh 

• Off-peak summer: $0.072/kWh 

• Part-peak winter: $0.09/kWh 

• Off-peak winter= $0.078/kWh 

Summer months are defined as May 1 through October 31 and the peak periods are as follows: 

• Peak time: noon to 6:00 pm 

• Partial-peak time: 8:30 am to noon and 6:00 to 9:00 pm 

Winter months are defined as November 1 through April 30 and the peak periods are as follows: 

• Partial-peak time: 8:30 am to 9:30 pm  

Our actual costs are somewhat lower because we pay Sonoma Clean Power for the generation costs.  
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3. What is the cost to transport the biosolids to each disposal outlet and what is the 

overhead/management costs including land costs for the biosolids? 
Our cost breakdown for biosolids disposal is as follows: 

Santa Rosa Biosolids 
 Cost Analysis Operating Costs (2011) 

Category Landfill Composting Land Application 

Labor $6,851 $692,957 $167,636 
Fuel -- $30,600 $5,400 
Repairs -- $54,420 -- 
Supplies -- $61,020 -- 
Electricity -- $84,044 -- 
E&R Vehicle -- $101,922 $16,186 
Hauling $7,235 $14,011 $144,849 
Tipping $47,580 -- -- 
Lime -- -- $111,140 
Spreading -- -- $82,053 

Total $61,666 $1,038,974 $527,264 
Wet Tons 1,220 6,841 18,416 
Cost/Ton $50.55 $151.87 $28.63 

4. Can you share the permits on the biosolids composting operation? 
The City’s compost facility operates under a CalRecycle Permit (SWIS Number 49-AA-0368). There are also 

requirements outlined in the Treatment Plant’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit 

(ORDER NO. R1-2013-0001, NPDES NO. CA0022764, WDID NO. 1B83099OSON) that address operation of the 

compost facility. Both documents are available online. 

5. Could anything be sited at the compost facility? 
The parcel on which the City’s compost facility is located is occupied and fully utilized by the City but the City 

is open to suggestions. 

6. Based on your biogas flows, you seem to be around 1.4MW of electrical output. Is that correct? If 

so, do we have it correct that you supplement with NG to fill the rest of the engine up so you can 

sustain 2.2MW? 
That is correct, we produce around 1.4 MW with our DG. However, our air permit allows us to supplement 

with up to 10% NG in the engines so we actually produce about 1.6 MW total. In the next 18-24 months, we 

are anticipating alterations to our permit that will allow us to increase our NG usage in two of our engines to 

100%. The remaining two engines are anticipated to remain at the 10% limit. 
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7. The average daily production of biogas has risen by over 100,000 cubic feet per day over the past 

year, is that due to industrial organics and is the numbers expected to be consistent going 

forward? 
Yes, this is due to our recent acceptance of high strength waste and yes, we expect the DG production to be 

consistent moving forward. 

8. Are you permitted by PG&E to send the biogas under the road to the existing engines and if so, 

what quality (H2S, etc.) does the gas need to be? 
We are not currently permitted to send biogas under the road but we anticipate that is something we could 

arrange as this would be accomplished with dedicated piping not tied into PG&E gas lines. Gas quality to the 

engines requires less than 13 ppm hydrogen sulfide, no water, and virtually no siloxanes. Gas heat value 

should be near or greater than that of DG gas (60-65% methane). 

9. Can you provide a map of the gas and electric services in the area? 
The City does not maintain gas and electric maps. This information can be requested and obtained from 

PG&E. 

10. Do you have any storage of digester gas on site or did we understand it correctly that you have 

an interest in doing so? 
We do not have on-site DG storage and we are interested in having it.  

11. When were the engines installed and have they been maintained with proper minor/major 

overhauls as required? 
Our engines were commissioned in 2013. They are properly maintained according to the manufacturer’s 

warranty requirements. 

12. Can you provide a map of the wells on the properties and the septic systems? 
The City has not done any well or septic testing on the properties, we know that wells and septic systems 

exist intermittently on the parcels and that information can be obtained from County records. 

13. Can you tell me the moisture percent of the bio sludge.   
The moisture content of the City’s biosolids have been averaging 16.6% for the last 30 days. The typical 

range varies between 15-17%. 

14. What is the ratio of green waste, to overs, to biosolids? 
Our ratios vary depending on the moisture content of the products but under optimum conditions our ratios 

are 15 yards of green waste, 15 yards of overs, and 12,000 to 13,000 pounds of biosolids. 
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15. What is the flooding impact from Colgan Creek? 
The Proposer should be aware that Colgan Creek experiences flashy and localized flooding during some rain 

events. 

16. Will City Wastewater plant accept contact or waste water generated from a processing facility 

located on these lots?  If so, what limits should be assumed and at what cost? 
The requirements for sewer discharge are comprehensively outlined in the Santa Rosa City Code under Title 

15 SEWERS. Section 15-08.100 LOCAL LIMITS specifically outlines the pollutant limits for Significant Industrial 

Users (SIUs). Limits for non-SIUs are variable base on discharged volumes. Costs are determined based on 

the actual level of contaminants found in the waste stream. Waste streams with low ultraviolet 

transmissivity (UVT) are of particular concern to the City and may be subject to restrictive discharge 

requirements during certain times of the year. Runoff generated at the site that does not have low UVT will 

likely be accepted at the Plant. 

17. What CTS/wetland compensatory mitigation obligation do they currently have on any of the 

parcels? 
For CTS, based on the Santa Rosa Plain Conservation Strategy for a given site, the mitigation ratios are either 

1:1 or 2:1. Permit conditions are ultimately dictated by State and Federal Resource Agencies. CTS credits 

cost in the range of $125,000 to $150,000 per acre. 

For wetlands, any proposed site will need to be delineated and, if impacts to wetlands cannot be avoided, 

will need to be mitigated. Typically, the offset ratio for wetlands is 3:1, with credits in the range of $100,000 

per acre. 

18. Is the City able to obtain “take” authorization and mitigation credit to purchase via the Santa 

Rosa Plain Conservation Strategy? 
The City has no unique take authorization granted by the Santa Rosa Plain Conservation Strategy. Obtaining 

all permits will be the responsibility of the Proposer. The City has staff experienced with obtaining Incidental 

Take Permits and purchasing mitigation credits and is willing to share its knowledge of the process. 

19. Have environmental and biological surveys been performed on these lots?  If, so will City provide 

studies prior to bid?  Have there been any definitive mapping of extent and location of CTS 

populations located on lots? 
No environmental or biological surveys have been performed on these lots. The CTS mapping is included as 

Exhibit A. – California Tiger Salamander 
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20. Who will be responsible for performing CEQA review and obtaining a Use permit for the 

proposed process on these lots?  Will City be the lead agency under CEQA?  Will City, as land 

owner, act as the proponent for the project or will proposer be required to obtain the land and 

use permits on these lots. 
The Proposer will be the project applicant and therefore be responsible for the costs associated with any 

CEQA review through the City’s normal project application process. The City will likely be the lead agency 

under CEQA. 

21. The house between parcel 002 and 012 is a concern. Can you elaborate on the City’s views on 

how to manage this landowner? 
The Proposer should anticipate that the land owner’s adjacent to any project proposed on a City owned 

parcel will participate in all public comment processes. 

22. Please clarify where homes and people are located in relation to parcels 134-232-012, 134-232-

022 and 134-232-010. Are there mitigation plans to address occupied parcels if needed? The map 

indicates that the parcels go right to Walker Avenue. 
Parcel 134-232-012. There are homes that appear to be occupied on the parcels directly to the north and 

south. These parcels are not owned by the City and Proposers are welcome to do a site visit and perform 

research with the County.  The City cannot be certain of the status of any County owned parcels.  

Parcel 134-232-022. There is a home on this City owned property that is vacant that could potentially be 

used as office space. This parcel borders the occupied home on 134-232-023 that is not owned by the City. 

Parcel 134-232-010. This parcel is vacant, the parcel bordering to the south is also City owned and is 

currently in a short-term lease with an aquatic nursery. No one lives on the parcel leased by the aquatic 

nursery nor are there any homes on the parcel. 

There are no mitigation plans to address occupied parcels not owned by the City. Any business leases we 

currently have are short term.   

23. What is the parcel number for property directly south of 134-232-010 and how many acres?  We 

could not find a map on the website. 
The parcel directly south of 134-232-010 is 134-232-031, 4164 Walker Avenue. This is a City owned parcel, is 

approximately 9.5 acres, and is currently in a short-term lease with an aquatic nursery. 

24. Will the City acquire or condemn the residential property bound by lots 134-232-012 and 134-

232-022?  If not, does the City anticipate an off-set requirement relative to processing activity 

occurring on lots 134-232-012 and 134-232-022 relative to resident bound by these lots? 
At this time, the City does not know what setback limits would be required. Any setback requirements would 

be set by the City’s Planning and Economic Department. The City cannot comment on purchases or 

condemnations of any parcels.   



RFP for Location of an  
Organics Processing Facility on City Property  

Addendum 1 
Page 6 of 6 

25. Aside from improvements, are there other taxes levied on each parcel that lessor would be 

responsible for (ie. WS DAM-Russian River proj, Bellevue Elem bond, Sr. High Dist Bond)? 
The City will pay all property taxes on the parcels. The City reports their leases to the County annually, any 

possessory use tax would be the responsibility of the Lessee and would be addressed in the negotiation of 

the Lease/Agreement. Tax information can be obtained from the County Tax Collector. 

26. Will improvements to leased parcel be taxed at 1%? 
Refer to the answer to Question 24. 

27. Will City consider selling the lots in question? 
The City does not have plans to sell any parcels. 

28. What are the market rates that you consider reasonable on the parcels of land and does the City 

have an expected range? 
The City does not currently have any leases of this type or with this intensity, therefore we cannot comment 

on a market value or range.  The Proposer should look at fair market value for comparable uses and take 

potential synergies into consideration.     

29. Can they provide more details on the prevailing wage comments in the RFP.   
The City is simply advising that there needs to be compliance with the Labor Code.  Any detailed analysis 

would depend on the specifics of each proposal and any possible participation of the City. 
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Exhibit A - California Tiger Salamander Mapping
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